

iwb 20/11/96

Deleted: , 9/1/97  
copy sent to J Hare 10/1/97

## Appendix 6

### Documentary Sources - some more information

Goddard E. 1936, *Copies of Terriers and other ancient Records relating to this Vicarage (Overton with Alton Priors and Fyfield, Wilts.)*. Unpublished notes.

References in the text to the 'Nona Inquisitions, (1342)', the 'Parliamentary Survey of 1649-50' and to Terriers come from this document which came to the FYFOD project via Sylvia Young of West Overton. It consists of a photocopy of 21 A3 pages of handwritten notes by Edward Goddard. These notes are a literal transcription by Goddard of 'a small note book in the custody of the Vicar of Overton' in 1936 in which someone, presumably a previous vicar, had written up in English as many of the records between 1290 and 1704 associated with the vicar and parish of Overton, as possible.

Deleted: ' (1342)

Deleted: ish

Deleted: . SRO xxxxx

Hare, J N. 1976, 'Lord and Tenant in Wiltshire, c.1380-1520, with particular reference to regional and seigneurial variations', (unpublished PhD thesis, University of London).

?? ask J Hare

Hare, J N. 1995, 'Agriculture and Land Use on the Manor of Overton 1248-1539'; (unpublished paper).

This essay was commissioned for the FYFOD project in April 1995. John Hare was asked to complete a thorough examination of as many documents as possible, especially those in the archives at Winchester cathedral, relating to the manor of East Overton and Fyfield, with particular emphasis on place-names, specifically Raddon. In addition, his brief was also to consider the manorial economy of East Overton and Fyfield in the medieval and later medieval periods. The documentary search was carried out by Hare's friend, Edward Roberts, with the final text written by Hare.

Deleted: period

Deleted: J N Hare and

Deleted: the former

Sheail J. 1968, 'The regional distribution of wealth in England as indicated in the 1524/5 lay subsidy returns, (unpublished PhD thesis, University of London).

?? ask J Hare

Straton C R (ed). 1909, Survey of the Lands of William First Earl of Pembroke. vol i. Roxburghe Club: Oxford.

This Survey is referred to in the text as the '1567 Survey', 'the Survey of 1567' or sometimes simply as 'the Survey'. The dating of this survey comes from VCH Wilts, vol xi, though it is evident others, such as John Hare, EGH Kempson, believe it to have been carried out in 1562. It covered each of the manors which the First Earl of Pembroke obtained after the Dissolution, including East Overton and Fyfield. For each entry, the manorial holdings, the names of tenants, their holdings and how these are held, and to a varying extent the boundaries of pasture and woodland, are detailed, offering the historian a great deal of material.

**Deleted:** To be precise the entry for West Overton was carried out in 1566 and that for East Overton and Fyfield in 1567 (WAM 32, xcvi, 291-2)

Yarrow S. 1995, Lockeridge, the Knights Templar and Rockley. Unpublished essay. FYFOD: Newcastle University.

Simon Yarrow's work on the Templars at Rockley and the history of their holdings in Lockeridge was commissioned by the FYFOD project in May 1995. Yarrow's brief was to transcribe any leases or donations of land at Lockeridge to the Knights Templar at Rockley into modern English. In addition he was asked to produce a brief history of Lockeridge, Fyfield Down and Rockley during the time of the Knights Templar, noting any pieces of information which were potentially relevant to the FYFOD project. His final report is archived as Working Paper 18 (WP18).

**Deleted:** -----Page Break-----

## Cartographic sources

*Andrews' & Dury's Map of Wiltshire, 1773.* (Reproduced by the Wiltshire Archaeological Society, Devizes, 1952).

Plates 11 & 14. Referred to as 'A&D' or 'A&D map' in the text.

*The Manors of East Overton, Lockeridge in Overton, Fyfield and Clatford in Preshute.*  
WRO/Open-access.

Late 18th century. Referred to as 'late C18 map' in the text.

*West Overton in the County of Wilts, 1783.* WRO/2203.

Two versions of this map exist, one, a 'rougher' version dated 1783, the other 1794. These are referred to as '1783 map' and '1794 map'.

*A Plan of the Manor of West Overton in the County of Wilts, 1802.* WRO/EA61.

Referred to as '1802 map'. This map was based on the previous two maps of West Overton (see above), and was no doubt carried out for the parliamentary inclosure commissioners of West Overton (25 March 1802).

Deleted: ta

Deleted: ¶

*A Plan of an Estate belonging to The Rev.<sup>d</sup> F. C. Fowle with the Lands adjoining comprehending the Manor of Fifield and East Overton in the County of Wilts. By A Dymock, 1811.* WRO/628/49/4.

Referred to as '1811 map'. The title is a little confusing as no part of the modern parish of East Overton appears on this map, apart from the tiny plot of 'Weylands'. As such this map is really delineating much of the boundary of the modern parish of Fyfield, though it does not of course include the late C19 additions of Clatford Park and Overton Heath.

*A Map of East Overton. West Overton. Lockridge and Fifield, made in the Inclosure. 1815 and 1816.* WRO/EA117.

Referred to as 'Inclosure map' or '1815/16 map'. Many of the details of the size of plots, land allotments and land exchanges are itemised in the margin of the map. A full report of the proceedings concerning this inclosure accompanies the map at WRO. Inclosure was not awarded to East Overton until 1821.

*A Plan of East Overton, West Overton, Shaw, Lockeridge and Fifield in the County of Wilts. By Abraham Dymock, 1819.* WRO/778/2.

Referred to as '1819 map'. Dymock would appear to have replaced Decimus Godson as surveyor and cartographer for the inclosure commissioners in East Overton and Fyfield. This multi-coloured map no doubt relied heavily on the previous maps of the area (especially WRO/628/49/4 & WRO/EA117), though is far more detailed, marking every gate and noting crops.

Deleted: r

Deleted: even

Deleted: ¶

Ordnance Survey 6" Map Sheet 28 1889 Edition

Ordnance Survey 6" Map Sheet 35 1889 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/14 1887 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/3 1900 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/6 1900 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/7 1900 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/10 1900 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/3 1924 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/4 1924 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/7 1924 Edition

Ordnance Survey 25" Map 28/10 1924 Edition

Olympia Agricultural Co. Ltd Map 1922 Map. WRO 2444/3.

Ordnance Survey 6" Map Sheet SU 17 SW 1960 Edition

Ordnance Survey 6" Map Sheet SU 16 NW 1960 Edition

Ordnance Survey 6" Map Sheet SU 16 NW 1960 Edition

National Nature Reserve 6" Map (Fyfield Down) 1959

National Nature Reserve 20" Map (Fyfield Down) 1967

Ordnance Survey 1" Map Sheet 157 1968

Ordnance Survey 1: 25 000 Pathfinder Map 1185 (SU06) 1987

Ordnance Survey 1: 25 000 Pathfinder Map 1169 (SU07) 1987